
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Pennines Township Committee 

Date: Wednesday, 17th June, 2020 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom / Youtube 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Minutes  3 - 6 

 To approve the minutes of the Pennines Township Committee meeting 

held on 5 February 2020 

 

3   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

4   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press   

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 

be excluded from the meeting. 

 

5   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

6   Pennines Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 

2020-21  

 7 - 10 

Public Document Pack



 To consider the attached report from the Director of Resources   

7   Pennines Township Funds Review  11 - 25 

 To consider the attached report from the Director of Neighbourhoods  



PENNINES TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Wednesday 5th February 2020 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Mir (in the Chair) Councillors Davidson, Emsley, 
Hartley, Hussain, Kelly, Paolucci, Bamford, Taylor and Besford 
 
OFFICERS: Steve Blezard (Assistant Director – Adult Care), Valery White 
and Chris Woods (Neighbourhoods Directorate), Alison James and Nazam 
Suleman (Resources Directorate) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Vic Thorne (HMR CCG); approximately 10 
members of the public 
 

25 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dearnley. 
 

26 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

27 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 

28 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 6th November 2019 be approved and 
signed as a correct record. 
 

29 OPEN FORUM 
The following matter was raised as part of the Open Forum:- 
 

a) Fair Ground at Hollingworth Lake 
 
The Committee considered representations from Mr Johnson and Mr Wallace 
relating to a decision not to permit the annual fair that had traditionally taken 
place at Hollingworth Lake for a number of years. The Committee were 
informed of the impact that not holding the fair could have both on the 
operator and local businesses. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Johnson and Mr Wallace for their representations and 
informed them that Officers would contact them about the application. 
 

30 HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION 
The Committee received a presentation from Steve Blezard (RBC) and Vic 
Thorne (CCG) relating to Integrated Health and Social Care Neighbourhood 
Teams. 
 
The presentation outlined the: 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 Rationale for integrated neighbourhood teams; 

 Why there were six neighbourhoods in the Borough; 

 The map showing the neighbourhoods; 

 Staff within the Team; 

 Changes that had happened since the Team was formed; 

 Specific Township issues; 
 
Members welcomed the new structure and requested that it be communicated 
more widely. 
 
Further information with contact details would be circulated to Members. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the presentation be welcomed and noted. 
 

31 2020 - 2022 HIGHWAYS CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which sought approval of indicative highways work programmes which were 
proposed to take place during the 2020/21 and 2021/22 financial years.  
 
The programmes included the following –  

 2 year local transport plan (LTP) funded capital programme; 

 2 year bridges and structures capital maintenance programme; 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
No alternatives have been considered. The programme has been developed 
according to DfT guidance and in line with other GM Authorities.   
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the highways work programmes to be delivered in 2020/21 and 
2021/22 as circulated to Members be noted and approved in principle, 
subject to any final amendments being submitted to the Highways 
Service. 

 
Reasons for the recommendation: 
 
The schemes that have been selected have been put together based on the 
principles of asset management which use network condition data, engineer 
inspections, life cycle planning and cost efficiency to produce the most 
efficient highway improvement over the course of the programmes.  
 
Using Asset management techniques for scheme selection ensures that they 
are in line with recommendations from the Department for Transport (DfT) 
which enables the full funding allocation from the DfT incentive fund scheme. 
Authorities that are deemed not to be carrying out efficient highway 
improvements can have funding reduced and in the case of Rochdale, the 
maximum reduction would be £410k. 

Page 4



 
32 TOWNSHIPS PLAN 2020-2022 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which outlined the Townships Plan for 2020-2022. 
 
The Council’s Corporate Plan 2019-2022 has now been agreed.  The process 
included carrying out a review of the Council’s values and behaviours which 
are now Proud, Passionate, Pioneering and Open. 
 
In line with the new Corporate Plan, the Townships Plan 2020–2022 has been 
developed around the following priorities: Prosperous People and Places. 
 
Township Chairs and Vice Chairs worked with the Portfolio Holder for 
Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture to produce the new Townships 
Plan. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
 
No alternatives to having the Plan were put forward. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the detail included in the Townships Plan 2020-2022 appended to 
the report be noted: 

2. It be noted that the plan has been developed in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder, Township Chairs and Vice Chairs in line with priorities 
identified in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2019-2022; 

3. That the Plan be approved to allow the Townships to focus on local 
priorities in line with the Council’s key priorities – Prosperous People 
and Places. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
 
The Townships Plan identifies priorities determined by each Township’s 
Councillors as a focus for action over the next two years. This plan gathers 
aspirations and ideas together as a focus for decision makers, Council 
Services, partner agencies and the voluntary and community sector active in 
the Rochdale Borough. The Townships Plan identifies priorities determined by 
each Township’s Councillors as a focus for action over the next two years. 
This plan gathers aspirations and ideas together as a focus for decision 
makers, Council Services, partner agencies and the voluntary and community 
sector active in the Rochdale Borough. 
 
The Townships Plan 2017-2019 is due to expire. The Townships Plan 2020-
2022 includes objectives identified to meet the priorities identified by each of 
the five Townships. It will also guide and direct and detail the use of devolved 
budgets, including Township Revenue Funds, for the financial years 2019/20, 
2020/21 and 2021/22. 
 

Page 5



The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan is 
a live document that can evolve and change to meet new opportunities and 
initiatives, and can be updated to reflect changes as we move forward. 
 

Page 6



 

Report to Pennines Township Committee 
 

 

Date of Meeting 17 June 2020 
Portfolio Councillor Daalat Ali 

(Cabinet Member for 
Resources) 

Report Author Peter Thompson 
Public/Private Document Public  

 

 

Pennines Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 
2019/20 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. To request that the Township Committee confirms its delegated decision 

making arrangements for the 2020/21 Municipal Year and appoints 
Members to agreed roles including the Chairs, Vice Chairs and substitute 
members; and the appointment to other Township Bodies and outside 
bodies. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. 
 
 
 
 
2.1     

 
That the Sub-Committee structure of the Pennines Township Committee be 
confirmed comprising of the Pennines Delegated & Funding Sub-Committee, 
established in accordance with the Terms of Reference for the Sub-
Committee as set out in Appendix 1 of the report. 
 
That appointments made to the Township Committee, Township Sub-   
Committee and other bodies be retained as in the previous Municipal Year 
2019/20 and detailed at appendix 2. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
3.3 

The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution.  
 
The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any 
matter detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is 
essential to take a decision.  
 
Appointments are made, as far as is possible, in accordance with the 
Township Committee’s political balance. 
 
The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and 
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other 
Bodies are delegated functions to enable the Township Committee to 
undertake and respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 

The Pennines Township Delegated Sub-Committee currently exercises 
formal powers as detailed at Appendix 1, as a Sub-Committee for dealing 
with ’urgent’ issues on behalf of the Township Committee and for making 
grant approvals and decisions on devolved budgets and Township Funds. 
 
The approval of Township Sub-Committee arrangements are sought on an 
annual basis to afford Members to opportunity to review the arrangements 
and confirm that they remain appropriate for effective governance and the 
efficient processing of Township Funds.  
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
The Committee could choose not to appoint to Sub-Committees and 
undertake all delegated functions themselves, but that this may have a 
detrimental impact on the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with 
urgent items of business. 
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. The Committee is being asked to confirm its delegation arrangements to 

ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory 
procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-Committee and the 
working groups might limit member involvement in key initiatives for the 
Township. 
 

Consultation 

 
7. None required. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. There are no background papers 
to this report. 

Not applicable 

 

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson, Tel: 01706 924715, 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

Page 8



Appendix 1 

Pennines Township Funding & Delegated Sub-Committee – Terms of 

Reference 2019/2020 

1. To deal with any urgent matters, on behalf of the Township Committee as 

detailed within Part 3, Paragraphs 8.1 and 8.2 of the Councils Constitution; 

2. To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township 
Funds), to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any 
devolved funding are met or are capable of being met before any 
decisions are made; 

 
3. To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township 

Funds, ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any 
devolved funding are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions 
are made. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



Appendix 2 

1. That all Members of the Pennines Township Committee be appointed to the 
Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee and with the 
Chair being Councillor Mir and the Vice Chair Councillor Besford; 
 

2. That the Regeneration and Facilities Service Group and Highways and 
Environmental Management Service Group be retained and all Members of 
the Township Committee be appointed to each; 
 

3. The relevant Ward Councillors be appointed to the following Ward Area 
Forum’s 

a. Milnrow, Newhey and Firgrove Area Forum; 
b. Littleborough and Wardle Community Meeting; 

 
4. Councillors Bamford, Davidson, Kelly and Besford be appointed to the 

Ellenroad Trust Limited; 
 

5. That Councillor Hartley be appointed to the Moorend Trust Management 
Committee; 
 

6. That Councillors Bamford, Besford, Blundell, Dearnley, Emsley, Hartley, Kelly, 
Paolucci, be appointed to the Pennines Township Planning Panel; 
 

7. That Councillor Dearnley be appointed as the Pennines Township Older 
Person’s Champion; 
 

8. That Councillor Davidson be appointed at the Pennines Township Highways 
Champion 

Page 10



 

Report to Pennines Township Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 17 June 2020 
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture 
Report Author Sharron Worrall 
Public/Private Document Public Document 

 
 

Pennines Township Funds Review 
 

 

1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2019/20 and 

provides options for the allocation of funds in 2020/21. 
  
1.2 Members are asked to approve Pennines Township Funds allocation to 

funding streams, terms and conditions, and agree delegation arrangements 
concerning funding decisions. 

 

2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines 

Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2019/20 (Appendix 
1 and 2). 

  
2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2019/20 

(Appendix 3). 
  
2.3 Members approve the allocation of Pennines Township Funds to funding 

streams in 2020/21 (Appendix 4). 
  
2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Pennines Township revenue 

and capital funds for 2020/21 (Appendix 5). 
  
2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Pennines Township 

Funds 2020/21 as detailed at 4.6 of this report. 
  
2.6 Members agree any uncommitted/unspent funds be reallocated to a central 

revenue or capital funding stream as appropriate before the end of January 
2021 to enable Members to spend/commit all Pennines Township Funds 
during 2020/21 financial year. 

  

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



 

3. Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 Management of the Pennines Township Fund is delegated to the Pennines 

Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee. 

  

3.2 Pennines Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities. 

  

3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines 
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds. 

 

4. Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines 

Township revenue and capital funds 2019/20 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2019/20 as agreed with Accountancy will be 
reported to the next scheduled funding committee. 

  
4.2 A review of Pennines Township revenue and capital funds has been 

undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2020/21. 

  
4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 

identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Pennines 
Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a 
difference to the local community with improvements to local facilities, 
increased social interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  
All successful applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that 
they complete a project evaluation form. 

  

4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 
Funds 2019/20 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2020/21 (Appendix 4). 

  

4.5 Terms and conditions for Pennines Township revenue and capital funds 
have been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and 
conditions for 2020/21 (Appendix 5). 

  

4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Pennines 
Township Funds 2020/21 as follows: 
 
a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair 

and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Committee, may make decisions 
on the allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.  Any 
disputes concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next 
Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee for decision. 

Page 12



b) Pennines Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee for decision. 

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Pennines 
Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee to ensure all Members 
are aware of projects that have been approved. 

  

4.7 Alternatives Considered 

  

 In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions. 

 

5. Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Pennines Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 

expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2019/20 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Pennines Township 
Funds to funding streams for financial year 2020/21 in Appendix 4. 

  

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Pennines Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources. 

  

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees. 

 

6. Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report. 
  
6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 

will be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in 
line with the identified priorities. 

  
6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 

meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet 
those priorities. 

 

7. Consultation 

 
7.1 Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee receives regular 

monitoring reports about the use of the funds.  All proposals will to be 
consulted on as appropriate with Members, residents and other 
stakeholders. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

None N/A 

 

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall 
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 924802 

 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2019/20 £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f (2018/19) 51,931       65.93% 94.63%

Base Budget 2019/20 81,500       

Income from other funds/services 2019/20 - 

Budget Available 2019/20 133,431     

Budgets transferred to services/actuals 87,968       

Commitments 38,297       

Total Actual + Commitments 126,265     

Budget Remaining 2019/20 7,166         

Forecast Outturn 133,431     

Potential under/overspend 2019/20 - 

Funds

 Balance 

b/f 2018/19

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2019/20

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments 

 Revised 

Budget 

2019/20 

 Actuals to 

Period 

 £ 

 Committed 

to Period 

£ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements 

to Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period 

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2019/20 

£ 

Projects Fund 34,986       64,500       - 99,486       60,331 27,856         (3,994) 13,342         97,536 1,950        

Events Fund - 5,000         - 5,000         1,787 - 3,213 - 5,000 - 

Pennines Town Centres Fund 12,885       - - 12,885       3,132 4,538 - - 7,670 5,215        

Littleborough Lakeside Ward Fund - 3,000         - 3,000         400 2,600 - - 3,000 - 

Milnrow & Newhey Ward Fund 2,060         3,000         - 5,060         2,000 2,054 - 1,006 5,060 - 

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Fund - 3,000         - 3,000         1,751 1,249 - - 3,000 - 

Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Fund 2,000         3,000         - 5,000         3,219 - 781 1,000 5,000 - 

Total 51,931       81,500       - 133,431     72,620 38,297         0 15,348         126,265  7,166        

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2019/20

P
age 14



APPENDIX 2

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2019/20

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2019/20           £  % Actual 
Spend 

 % Actual + 
Committed 

Budget b/f 2018/19              4,600 97.28% 97.28%
Base Budget 2019/20            77,600 
Income/Adjustments 2019/20                      - 
Budget Available 2019/20            82,200 
Budgets transferred to other services/actuals            79,963 
Commitments                      - 
Total Actual + Commitments            79,963 
Budget Remaining 2019/20              2,237 

Forecast Outturn            82,200 
Potential under/(over)spend 2019/20                      - 

Funds
 Balance b/f 

2018/19
£ 

 Budget 
2019/20

£ 

 Income/
Adjustments 

 Revised 
Budget 
2019/20 

 Actuals to 
Period 

 £ 

 Committed 
to Period 

£ 

 Virements 
within 

Township 
Funds 

£ 

 Virements 
to Services 

£ 

 Total to 
Period 

£ 

 Budget 
remaining 

2019/20 
£ 

Capital Fund            4,336          69,600                      -        73,936            31,035                   -          (2,237)          42,901      71,699          2,237 
Littleborough Lakeside Ward Capital Fund 264             2,000           -                    2,264         -                    -                  252             2,012          2,264      -                
Milnrow & Newhey Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                    2,000         -                    -                  -                  2,000          2,000      -                
Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                    2,000         150               -                  1,850          -                  2,000      -                
Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Capital Fund -                  2,000           -                    2,000         859               -                  135             1,006          2,000      -                
Total            4,600          77,600                      -        82,200            32,044                   -                   -          47,919      79,963          2,237 

P
age 15



1 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 
PENNINES TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2019/20 
 
REVENUE FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Projects Fund £64,500 

Base Budget 
 

£34,986 
b/f 2018/19 

 

Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Pennines Township. 
 
This fund was used to support 30 projects consisting of 25 community projects and 5 highways/environmental 
projects.  The variety of projects funded included Fit, Feed & Read at Smallbridge Library that aimed to improve the 
physical/mental health and wellbeing of local children with the provision of a meal during the summer holidays, fitness 
sessions and reading activities; equipment/resources to support the activities of the Street Watch pilot in Milnrow and 
Newhey Villages; installation of an octopus themed seesaw to enhance the play provision at Clough Street Play Area, 
Wardle; installation of two gates in fencing near Lobley Close, Smallbridge to facilitate access restricted to Council 
Operatives to clean up fly tipping on Council land; gentle exercise and wellbeing sessions and coffee mornings at 
Smallbridge Library to offer the local community an opportunity to improve their health and meet like-minded people in 
a welcoming environment; replace sections of grass verge on Alderbank with new kerb and bitmac and installation of 
a timber knee rail to prevent vehicles driving on the grass verge and causing damage; installation of a new flagpole at 
Hollingworth Lake to replace the existing flagpole as the mechanism to access the internal halyard system was worn 
and knotted; refurbishment of instruments for Wardle Anderson Brass Band and Wardle Academy Youth Band to 
make provision for more young people to join and develop their brass playing skills; contribution to the provision of 
furnishings, equipment and resources to develop activities and improve access to the New Life Centre located on 
Edmund Street, Milnrow; Link4Life’s functional fitness course to improve the health and wellbeing of residents with 
activities to improve postural stability, strength, flexibility and balance to promote greater independence and reduce 
the risk of falls in the future; Blokes @ Hare Hill House weekly sessions to reduce isolation and loneliness amongst 
men within the community and contribute to improvements in their health and wellbeing; NatureEd CIC’s Bee Inspired 
to provide more and better connected habitats for attracting bees and other pollinators with a network of 'Buzz 
Stations' and 'Stops' planted with flowering species within primary schools grounds to create new Buzz habitats.  
Interactive Buzz educational activities to inspire the children to actively care for bees and other pollinators; renovation 
of the ‘The Gig House’ in Hare Hill Park for the purpose of creating a public studio space to deliver fun, accessible art 
and craft activities, classes and workshops for children and their parents/carers and adults; bedding plants and shrubs 
to create attractive floral displays and horticultural features for the Pennines in Bloom entry; woodland and tree works 
at the Pavilion area at Hollingworth Lake Country Park to open up the site for visitors to enjoy away from the main 
lakeside footpath. 
 
Committed funds of £27,856 at year end will be carried forward into 2020/21. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund is allocated a base budget of £64,028 in 2020/21 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

P
age 16



2 
 

 
 
 
REVENUE FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Ward Fund £12,000 

Base Budget 
 

£4,060 
b/f 2018/19 

Each Pennines Township Ward received £3,000 to allocate to smaller projects that would enable activities to take 
place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and environment.  This fund has been 
useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues that necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors 
identifying projects and approval being sought from the Pennines Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
This fund was used to support 14 projects consisting of 8 community projects and 6 highways/environmental project.  
The variety of projects funded included Littleborough Library hosted The Nightbus - Drag Queen Story Time that 
offered service users through the media of drag an inclusive story time that celebrated different cultures and identities 
and promoted understanding and awareness of the LGBQT community; contribution to the restoration and 
reinstatement of the paths to the War Memorial located in the grounds of St James Church, Milnrow; installation of a 
salt bin on Lady House close as this road is hazardous during wintry conditions; provision of small Christmas food 
hampers to service users of Our Local Pantry Smallbridge and establishing a coffee morning/drop in advice session at 
Stevenson Square every Thursday for service users and the wider community during the winter months; a Christmas 
event at Smallbridge Library to bring the community together during the festive period with residents invited to 
participate in activities with refreshments made available in a social and friendly environment; contribution to the 
removal of the grass verge on Arm Road leading onto James Street, Littleborough to create a better kerb alignment 
around the bend in the road to aid traffic flow and resolve the issue of vehicle overrun damage; works to the trees 
along Ribble Avenue, Shore consisting of thinning, crown lifting and felling to reduce the density of the shade beneath 
the trees, address imbalance/stability and improve their appearance; supply and installation of a closed top litter bin 
on Arm Road, Littleborough to encourage the community to dispose of their litter responsibly and keep the area clean; 
clearance of vegetation from the ditch/watercourse at the rear of Brookfield Drive, Off Starring Way, Littleborough to 
alleviate flooding in the area; the creation of attractive floral displays in public areas to enhance the local environment 
in Shore. 
 
Funds of £781 were unallocated prior to financial year end 2019/20 and as agreed at Pennines Township Committee 
on 12 June 2019, these unspent funds were transferred to the Projects Fund.  Committed funds of £5,903 at year end 
will be carried forward into 2020/21. 
 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Fund is allocated a base budget of £3,000 in 2020/21. 

P
age 17



3 
 

 
 
 
REVENUE FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Events Fund £5,000 

Base Budget 
The Events Fund is available to resource events in Pennines Township that will bring neighbours together, strengthen 
community spirit and benefit the local economy. 
 
This fund was used to support the next Milnrow & Districts Carnival that brings together the local community with a 
procession from Newhey to Milnrow followed by a fete in Milnrow Memorial Park with stalls and activities.  Residents 
are encouraged to participate with the event promoted through the local press, a local magazine distributor and online 
in the months preceding each year's summer carnival. 
 
Funds of £3,213 were unallocated prior to financial year end 2019/20 and as agreed at Pennines Township 
Committee on 12 June 2019, these unspent funds were transferred to the Projects Fund. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Events Fund is allocated a base budget of £5,000 to contribute to Pennines Township events in 2020/21. 

Town Centres 
Fund 

£0 
Base Budget 

 
£12,885 

b/f 2018/19 

Pennines Township received a budget of £25,000 in 2015/16 from Rochdale Council’s Economic Affairs Unit for the 
purpose of assisting the town centres within the Pennines Township to grow, prosper and diversify.  The Town 
Centres Fund was established to support creative ideas and to generate increased business and interest in shopping 
at the local town centres/high streets in Pennines. 
 
This fund supported 2 projects.  The Community Toilet Scheme that encourages local businesses to make their toilet 
facilities available to visitors/shoppers to address the lack of public conveniences and the next Littleborough Food & 
Drink Festival that will celebrate quality food and drink from local businesses with live cookery demonstrations and 
entertainment with the aim of supporting and promoting businesses in Littleborough. 
 
Committed funds of £4,538 will be carried forward into 2020/21. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Town Centres Fund retains the brought forward budget in 2020/21. 

 

P
age 18



4 
 

 
 
 
CAPITAL FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Capital Fund £69,600 

Base Budget 
 

£4,336 
b/f 2018/19 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver a range of projects that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment, and realise the Township priorities.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council Officers and the 
community. 
 
This fund supported 10 projects consisting of 7 community projects and 3 highways/environmental projects.  The 
variety of projects funded included improves to the allotment and community garden facilities at Littleborough Fire 
Station involving the installation of a community partnership building (timber log cabin) that will provide shelter during 
inclement weather for school children and user groups who visit the site; supply and installation of additional CCTV in 
Hare Hill Park Skate Park, Littleborough after reports from GM Fire & Rescue Service that youths have been starting 
fires in the Skate Park; installation of fencing at Wardle Football Club to protect the club’s facilities and car park area 
plus goals and a storage container for equipment for the three new junior teams; replacement of nine bollards in 
varying poor condition with new Manchester type bollards on Duke Street, Spenwood Road, Featherstall Brook View, 
Bamford Street and Shore Road to Aberley Fold, Littleborough; provision of furnishings, equipment and resources to 
develop activities and improve access to the New Life Centre located on Edmund Street, Milnrow to reduce isolation 
and support the marginalised and vulnerable in the local community and engage with young people and help reduce 
anti-social behaviour in the area; repair of the historical ABC steps located in the Stubley Lane area of Littleborough 
that lead to the Rochdale Canal and provide a link to rights of way that lead to Hollingworth Lake; a contribution 
towards the infrastructure and light features in the Huddersfield Road shopping area and Cotton Tree Corner, Newhey 
to enhance the festive display in the village; Project 2020 initiative to address the limitations of the existing Holy Trinity 
Church building concerning providing services (outside of faith based support) and facilities for user groups and the 
wider community; removal of the grass verge on Arm Road leading onto James Street, Littleborough to create a better 
kerb alignment around the bend in the road to aid traffic flow and resolve the issue of vehicle overrun damaging the 
grass verge and the subsequent maintenance liability; extension of the Wardle Football Club’s lower pitch from a 
junior size to an adult/open age sized pitch and improve drainage to comply with Football Association Charter 
Standard Programme.  The planning process identified a risk of waste material being brought to the surface by 
bioturbation (mixing of materials by the actions of soil organisms and growth of plant roots).  To prevent bioturbation 
between the existing landfill material and the proposed pitch surface, a suitable separation layer to be added to 
remove the risk to pitch users and mitigate any health and safety concerns. 
 
Unallocated funds of £2,237 will be carried forward to 2020/21. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund is allocated a base budget of £69,520 in 2020/21 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

P
age 19



5 
 

 
 
 
CAPITAL FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Ward Capital 
Fund 

£8,000 
Base Budget 

 
£264 

b/f 2018/19 

Each Pennines Township Ward received £2,000 to allocate to smaller projects that would enable activities to take 
place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and environment.  This fund has been 
useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues that necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors 
identifying projects and approval being sought from the Pennines Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
This fund supported 6 projects consisting of 1 community project and 5 highways/environmental projects.  The variety 
of projects funded included a contribution towards the infrastructure and light features in the Huddersfield Road 
shopping area and Cotton Tree Corner, Newhey to enhance the festive display in the village; installation of salt bins 
on Welbeck Avenue, Barnes Meadows and Wasp Mill Drive as these roads become hazardous during wintry 
conditions; provision of a bollard on Ditton Mead Close to prevent parking on the footway and a contribution towards 
the construction of a stone wall to replace the existing damaged wire fencing to create a more substantial boundary to 
the entrance of Barkers Wood. 
 
Funds of £2,237 were unallocated prior to financial year end 2019/20.  As agreed at Pennines Township Committee 
on 12 June 2019, these unspent funds were transferred to the Capital Fund. 
 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Capital Fund is allocated a base budget of £2,000 in 2020/21. 
 

P
age 20



APPENDIX 4

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2020/21

REVENUE FUNDS 2020/21 = £119,325

REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2019/20 Base Budget Income/
Adjustments

Total Budget 
2020/21 Committed

Budget 
Available 
2020/21

Notes

Projects Fund £27,856 £64,028 £0 £91,884 £27,856 £64,028 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the 
Township priorities.  Base budget of £64,028 with retained 
budget of £27,856 (see committed column) for projects 
approved pre 2020/21.

Events Fund £0 £5,000 £0 £5,000 £0 £5,000 Fund to resource events organised for the benefit of the local 
community.  Base budget of £5,000.

Ward Revenue Fund £5,903 £12,000 £0 £17,903 £5,903 £12,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address local 
issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and 
environment.  Base budget of £12,000 will provide each 
Pennines Township Ward with £3,000 to allocate to revenue 
projects within their Ward.  A retained budget of £5,903 (see 
committed column) relates to projects approved pre 2020/21.

Town Centres Fund £4,538 £0 £0 £4,538 £4,538 £0 Fund received from Rochdale Council’s Economic Affairs Unit 
for the purpose of assisting the town centres within the 
Pennines Township to grow, prosper and diversify.  Grants 
will be made available to support creative ideas and to 
generate increased business and interest in shopping at local 
town centres/high streets in Pennines Township.

TOTAL £38,297 £81,028 £0 £119,325

Page 1 of 2

P
age 21



CAPITAL FUNDS 2020/21 = £79,757

CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2019/20 Base Budget Income/
Adjustments

Total Budget 
2020/21 Committed

Budget 
Available 
2020/21

Notes

Capital Fund £2,237 £69,520 £0 £71,757 £0 £71,757 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the 
Township priorities.  Base budget of £69,520 with brought 
forward budget of £2,237.

Ward Capital Fund £0 £8,000 £0 £8,000 £0 £8,000 Fund to resource smaller capital projects that address local 
issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and 
environment.  Base budget of £8,000 will provide each 
Pennines Township Ward with £2,000 to allocate to capital 
projects within their Ward.

TOTAL £2,237 £77,520 £0 £79,757

Page 2 of 2

P
age 22



 

Form PT02 
1 

 

PPEENNNNIINNEESS  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22002200//2211 
 

1. Purpose of the fund 
 

Pennines Township’s vision is to create sustainable urban and semi-rural communities in our Township 
where people feel safe and have a sense of community and belonging.  We want the local community to have 
access to appropriate housing, employment, leisure and community facilities, and proper social and family 
support. 
 
Pennines Township funds can be used to offer support to projects and organisations that are of direct benefit 
to the community and environment of the Pennines area.  Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, 
third sector organisations and area forums can submit projects on relevant application forms for funding from 
Pennines Township Funds. 
 
All projects must show how they will address the Pennines Township priorities of: 
 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 
healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 
communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, work 
and invest. 

 Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 
the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 

 

2. What can be funded 
 

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities. 
b) Projects that will aid the COVID-19 pandemic recovery. 
c) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council. 
d) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 
e) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc. 
f) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme. 
g) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, 

fencing, lights, CCTV, etc. 
h) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs. 
i) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc. 
j) Publicity materials for use in your project and recognises the contribution made by the Township. 
k) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 
l) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 
m) Talented young athletes competing at national/international level supported by a recognised sporting 

body. 
 

3. What cannot be funded 
 

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces 
existing services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

b) Projects benefiting individuals. 
c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider 

community benefit or Pennines Township is responsible for the maintenance of the land. 
d) Alterations to land solely for parking provision.  Rochdale Council does not have a statutory duty to 

provide parking on residential streets.  Being able to park close to a property is viewed as a privilege 
as no person has the right to park on the Highway.  Removal of permeable surfaces such as grass 
verges increases surface water run-off.  Whilst removing verges in isolated locations will have a small 
impact, the accumulative effect on the drainage network will be noticeable and increase the risk of 
surface water flooding over time. 

e) Promoting religious or political causes. 

APPENDIX 5

Page 23



 

Form PT02 
2 

f) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 
functions. 

g) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events. 
h) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff. 
i) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 
j) Parties/day trips out. 
k) Purchase of alcohol. 
l) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded. 
m) Purchasing or hiring of vehicles. 
n) Purchasing insurance. 
 

4. Terms and conditions 
 

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council. 

b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the 
Pennines Township priorities (see section 1). 

c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank 
account. 

d) Applicants will be required to attend the committee considering their grant application to respond to 
questions to aid the decision making process.  Failure to attend the committee will result in the 
application being deferred to a future meeting. 

e) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 
made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Delegated and 
Funding Sub Committee’s discretion. 

f) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use 
must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee’s discretion. 

g) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be 
claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs. 

h) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), 
regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their project/event are in place. 

i) Applicants are responsible for ensuring infection prevention and controls relating to the project/event 
are in place and comply with the Government and Public Health guidelines. 

j) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on 
Council owned land. 

k) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have 
policies and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe. 

l) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to 
ensure adequate insurance is in place. 

m) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 
by Township Funds. 

n) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 
not adhered to. 

o) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant. 

p) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy 
invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Pennines Township Office within 
one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions 
being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

q) Applicants will be required to participate in any press or media related activities relating to the grant. 

r) Applicants who seek to be awarded funds from Pennines Township on successive occasions need to 
demonstrate how they have tried to secure funding from other sources. 

s) Community/voluntary organisations are limited to one Pennines Township grant in any two consecutive 
financial years.  Community wide annual events in the Pennines Township may be considered for Page 24



 

Form PT02 
3 

funding at the discretion of the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. 

t) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the 
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 

5. Decision Making Process 
 

a) All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation. 
b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and 

conditions of the fund. 
c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to 

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be 
requested to supply additional information. 

d) Township Officers will refer projects for funding over £5,000 to the next Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee for decision. 

e) Township Officers can use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000 
or less. 

f) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward Councillors to seek their 
support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project. 

g) Any disputes concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Pennines Township Delegated 
and Funding Sub Committee for decision. 

h) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub Committee meeting. 

i) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a 
Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 
not been re-elected. 

j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 
 

6. Commissioning Process 
 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the specification 
and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure 
alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 
maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the 
provider and the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee prior to incurring any 
additional costs. 

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of 
the change, i.e. time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc. and additional costs, and agree the 
variations with the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. 

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the 
variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by 
the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide not to 
accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the 
Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 
Funds. 

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost 
of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage 
payments may be agreed. 

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Pennines 
Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service provider, 
withhold funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service provider 
unless agreed otherwise with the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. 

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices. 
Page 25


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Pennines Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2020-21
	7 Pennines Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Pennines Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Pennines Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Pennines Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Pennines Township Funds Review
	Appendix 5 - Pennines Township Funds Review


